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	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
60 East Main Street

	Historic Name:
Richard & Mary Tenney House

	Uses:
Present: 
single residence

	Original: 
single residence

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1842

	Source:   
deeds

	Style/Form:   
Greek Revival

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
stone

	Wall/Trim:  
wood clapboards

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


Barn (attached)

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


2 story wind added east side

1 story wing added west side



	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:   0.75 acres

	Setting:   This house is sited on the north side of East Main Street just northwest of its intersection with Library Street on a large lot with mature trees. The area is largely residential.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The Richard & Mary Tenney House is a two-story wood frame single dwelling located on the northerly side of East Main Street east of Winter Street.  Built ca. 1842, the house presents a three-bay front-gable façade to the street with an offset entrance recessed within a trabeated architrave.  The two windows opposing the doorway are widely spaced to accommodate a chimney between them; this spacing is repeated on the second story.  A single window is centered in the attic.  All windows are trimmed with wide moldings with corner blocks at the tops, both on the front and on the five-bay side walls.  A two-story wing was added to the rear of the easterly side wall sometime during the first half of the 20th century; it contains a sun porch on the first story and a sleeping porch on the on the second.  A one-story wing was added at the rear of the westerly side somewhat later.  
A two-story wood frame barn is connected to the rear wall and is offset so that it can be entered from a driveway on the west side of the house.  However, the added wing on the westerly side abuts the barn and covers the old entrance.  The interior of the barn has been altered for domestic use.  A driveway now enters the property on the east side of the house, terminating at a parking area.  The large lot is landscaped in lawn distinguished by numerous and various mature specimen trees. 

The Richard & Mary Tenney House, built c. 1842, is a distinctive example of Greek Revival-style domestic architecture in Georgetown center.  The building is a contributing component of the village district.     
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
In 1842, shoe manufacturer George Jewett Tenney deeded the parcel on which 60 East Main Street now stands to his younger brother Richard Tenney (1810-84).
 Sons of pioneer shoemaker Amos Jewett Tenney and his first wife Lucy Spofford Tenney, the brothers grew up on Tenney Street.
 While his older brothers George and Charles Spofford Tenney became prominent industrialists and capitalists in Georgetown, Richard was somewhat less affluent. In 1837 he married Mary Sophia Nelson, the daughter of Stephen Mighill and Apphia Lambert Nelson; her sister Sarah married Lewis Hatch Bateman and lived most of her life at 52 East Main, two houses to the north.

Richard Tenney paid $1500 for the East Main Street property in 1842, and though the deed makes no mention of a building on the site, the value indicates there was. The 1840 census enumerates Richard and Mary S. Tenney between his brothers Charles and George, which suggests that he may then have been living on Elm Street, where Charles owned a home in 1830 and where George J. later lived. The 1856 village map attaches “R. Tenney” to the house at 60 East Main Street, and the 1860 census shows Tenney in this neighborhood with his wife Mary, their fourteen-year-old daughter Mary, and two boarders.
The 1850 industrial schedules of the census show Tenney as a manufacturer of leather shoe strings employing three men and making 650,700 shoe strings worth $2437. By 1860, though, he was no longer listed in these schedules, and the census shows him as a shoemaker with $3450 in real property and $1000 in personal property. In 1870 he is listed simply as a shoe factory worker; he was then sixty years old. Tenney was nonetheless a notable citizen: he served as postmaster during the Lincoln administration and was librarian for a time at the town’s Peabody Library.
Richard Tenney died in 1884, and his widow Sarah Nelson Tenney lived in the house until her own death in March 1901. Five years later, the couple’s only child Mary, who had married New Jersey-born merchant and importer Adam S. Stiger in 1869 and lived then in New York City, sold 60 East Main Street to Edith B. Dresser, the wife of shoe treer Leonard Melvin Dresser.
  Born in 1873 in Georgetown, Dresser was the son of boot and shoemaker Benjamin Melvin Dresser; by 1900 Benjamin M. Dresser was working as a laster and Leonard worked six months of that year as a shoe factory treer at A. B. Noyes’s shoe shop in Georgetown. By 1916 he had become a reporter, though he seems to have alternated between reporting and shoe factory work for several decades; the 1932 directory shows him as town clerk and a reporter for the Boston Globe, though censuses and directories usually show him in various shoe shop occupations.
In 1903 Leonard Dresser married Edith Boylston Waldron, a native of Quincy, and the couple occupied this property until they died, Edith Dresser in 1935 and her husband in 1937. In April 1939 his legatees sold the property to Mary E. Meader, the widow of shoecutter Frank E. Meader.
  Meader, born Mary O’Connor about 1880 in Ireland, emigrated in the 1890s and was living in Haverhill when she married the widower Frank Meader in 1905. The couple lived on Elm and Central Streets in Georgetown and were living at 15 Central Street when Frank Meader died in 1928. Mary Meader remained at the Central Street address with her son Frank, a clerk in Lynn, until she acquired 60 East Main Street. The 1940 census shows her at this address with her adult sons William, a telegraph operator; Frank and Paul, both grocery store clerks; and Albert, a driver.

Seven months before she died of colon cancer in October 1953, Mary Meader deeded 30 East Main Street to her self and her son Frank. The 1957 directory shows her son William occupying the house, though Frank owned it until 1984, when he sold the property to current owners Richard C. and Cynthia A. Holzapfel.
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Views from SE (top) and NW (bottom)
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National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
    G

                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The Richard & Mary Tenney House, built c. 1842, is a distinctive example of Greek Revival-style domestic architecture in Georgetown center.  The building is a contributing component of the village district.     
� George J. Tenney to Richard Tenney, 1 January 1842, SED 345:232.


� On the Tenney family, see M. J. Tenney, The Tenney Family, or the Descendants of Thomas Tenney of Rowley, Massachusetts, 1638-1904, rev. ed.  (Concord, NH: Rumford Press, 1904), 98, 188, and M. V. B. Perley, History and Genealogy of the Perley Family (Salem, MA: by the compiler, 1906), 80


� Richard’s brothers George and Charles married the sisters Susan and Elizabeth Nelson, the daughters of Lieutenant Jonathan Nelson and his wife Hannah March. Only distantly related, all descended from the immigrant Thomas Nelson (1615-ca 1648), but Lieutenant Jonathan Nelson was descended from Thomas’s son Captain Philip Nelson (1636-91), while Stephen Mighill Nelson was descended from Thomas’s son Sergeant Thomas Nelson (1638-1712). See www.trenholm.org.


� Mary T. Stiger, New York NY, to Edith B. Dresser, 17 September 1906, SED 1844:276. Leonard M. Dresser was distant cousins to Enoch Dresser and his sons Elijah C. and William O. Dresser, whose family homes were nearby on Union and on Library Streets.


� Benjmain Dresser, Susan F. Bourne, Helen G. Paige, Abigail B. Nickerson, Georgianna B. Rugman, and Harriot M. Nash to Mary E. Meader, 27 April 1939, SED 3180:1.


� Mary E. Meader to Mary E. Meader and Frank M. Meader, 25 March 1953, SED 3967:50; Frank M. Meader, Georgetown, to Richard C. and Cynthia A. Holzapfel, 60 East Main, 31 May 1984, SED 7422:171.
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